1964

Marian L. Sanderson v. Industrial Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Plaintiff

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an Appeal from an Order denying Injury benefits under the Workmen's Compensation Act, and an Order denying a Rehearing.

DISPOSITION IN THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION

An Order was entered by The Industrial Commission limiting recovery by the Applicant, denying her claim for payment of expenses and for permanent partial disability benefits, and after application for rehearing, this appeal followed.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff, Marian L. Sanderson, herein called Sanderson, seeks reversal of the Order of the Defendant, The Industrial Commission, as a matter of law and an

Order of this Court directing the Industrial Commission to award the Plaintiff all of her medical and hospital expenses, attorney's fees, permanent partial disability benefits or a rehearing.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The Applicant, Marian L. Sanderson, suffered an industrial accident January 16, 1962, during her employment with Belnap Freight Lines. She was going out of the building in which she was employed; she slipped and fell down defective, slippery, wet, and snowy stairs, and incurred injury to her back and other parts of her body.

The Applicant was hospitalized and received treatment. She lost time from work and continually suffered from the injury.

She was examined and treated by four physicians, three prior to the hearing and one subsequent to the hearing.

The State Insurance Fund assumed liability for the injuries so sustained by Sanderson.

The matter was referred on April 15, 1963, to a Medical Panel which thereafter filed its report dated July 17, 1963, with the Commission. The Plaintiff filed her objections to said report on August 9, 1963.

The matter was referred again to a Panel on August 19, 1963, and the Panel filed its report on October 18, 1963. Sanderson thereafter filed her objections to the second report on November 21, 1963.

Pursuant to Section 35-1-77, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, The Industrial Commission set the matter for hearing on February 10, 1964. Dr. Wayne M. Nebertson and Dr. Boyd G. Holbrook appeared on behalf

of the Medical Panel and were examined in regard to the panel reports. Dr. J. Louis Schricker and Dr. John F. Waldo appeared and were examined on behalf of Sanderson, and Sanderson appeared and was examined on her own behalf.

At the hearing, Dr. Hebertson testified that he had reviewed the Sanderson record and had examined her to the extent of examining her mental status and mental functions, her speech mechanisms, head, neck, and lower spine.

His examination of the lower spine revealed the presence of pain and that she by herself was unable to raise her legs to the 80 degree position during the straight-leg test. (R,5,6) He did not examine her in regard to her diabetic condition being aggravated by the pain and suffering from the injury.

When Dr. Hebertson examined the nerves to the head and face, Sanderson complained of a loss of feeling over the left side of the base. (R,75)

When Dr. Hebertson examined her extremities, he found that her grip was slightly reduced on the left side. (R,76)

When Dr. Hebertson examined her sensory functions, she complained that there was some loss of perception of touch over the left upper extremity. (R,77)

When Dr. Hebertson tested the tendon reflex activity, he concluded that her deep tendon reflexes were sluggish. (R, 78)

Dr. Hebertson's evaluation of Sanderson after his examination was (1) he found no objective evidence of loss of function of the central or peripheral nervous system; (2) he found subjective evidence of loss of function, i.e. pain which was present over the patient's head and neck, her decreased grip in the left hand and

the loss of feeling over the left side of the face and left upper extremity. (R, 80,81)

When counsel for Sanderson asked Dr. Hebertson a question regarding disability, he assessed a five (5%) per cent loss of function. When asked about the condition of her hand and arm, the doctor admitted that her arm would get abnormally tired and give a tingling or numbness with her condition. He also admitted a possible disability for typewriting. (R 81-83)

Counsel asked permission of the Referee to have Sanderson explain to Dr. Hebertson what type of work she did. The Referee summarily denied the request.

In reply to the question of whether or not there had been significant loss of function of her arm and hand, Dr. Hebertson replied in the affirmative. (He previously defined subjective evidence, i.e. the presence of pain over Sanderson's head and neck, her decreased grip in the left hand, and the loss of feeling over the left side of the face and left upper extremity.) (R, 80, 81, and 84)

It was at the hearing that Counsel obtained an admission from Dr. Hebertson that Sanderson had a significant loss of function--a disabling factor so that she would not be able to have the reasonable use of her left arm in her work or in her daily living (R, 85) (emphasis added)

In regard to the Medical Panel Report of October 18, 1963, Dr. Hebertson agreed that the report could be amended and the following statement added, to-wit: That subjectively there was a loss of function of arm or hand. (R, 88)

After Dr. Hebertson finished, the Referee permitted Counsel for Applicant to query Dr. Holbrook.

Dr. Holbrook testified that he was present at the examination of Sanderson and acted as recorder.

At the first Panel examination on July 17, 1963, he remembered seeing someone touch various parts of Sanderson's body; but when asked to identify the doctor so examining, he always replied that he didn't know. (R, 97 and 98)

At the second Panel examination, he remembered that Sanderson was examined by Dr. Hebertson. (R,99)

Questions were asked of Dr. Holbrook regarding the first Panel examination on July 17, 1963, in regard to examining Sanderson's head. He said that compression of the head was made in a general manner on the top of the head which resulted "in very marked and severe pain in the neck, with excruciating pain going into the head and the back of both eyes, " and "the applicant wept." (R,100) (emphasis added)

Dr. Holbrook further testified that when the neck was examined, Sanderson complained of pain, (R,100) and of difficulty in turning her head to the left. (R,100 and 101)

After Dr. Holbrook finished, Dr. Schricker was examined; and he testified on behalf of Sanderson.

Dr. Schricker performed a physical examination at his office and conducted an observation of Sanderson in the hospital. From such, he made the following diagnoses: (R, 109)

1. Post-concussion syndrome
2. Lumbo-sacral strain, left
3. Observation for cervical disc

Dr. Schricker concluded in his report of February 25, 1963, which he sent to the State Insurance Fund, that

Sanderson had a temporary partial disability of twenty-five (25%) per cent body function as a whole. (R 108 and 109)

At the hearing, Dr. Schricker testified that Sanderson had a permanent partial disability of ten (10%) to fifteen (15%) per cent body function as a whole including the left arm, the head, the neck, and the back. (R, 110 and 112)

After Dr. Schricker finished, Dr. John F. Waldo was examined and testified on behalf of Sanderson in regard to her diabetic condition. He said that she had to go into the hospital again on June 15, 1962, and stayed until July 4, 1962 because her diabetes was out of control. (R,120) He was of the opinion that the loss of control of the diabetes was related to the injury in her back. (R,120)

Dr. Waldo, in answer to the question--"as she would have severe pain, would this also influence the fact of the diabetes going out of control?"--replied that with Sanderson such had "followed in general." (R,121)

Dr. Waldo also confirmed the fact that the diabetes was difficult to control when the pain and the suffering increased. (R,123 and 129)

After Dr. Waldo testified, Sanderson was examined and testified on her own behalf. (R,139)

The Referee asked for the loss of work record of Sanderson, and the following schedule was given, to-wit: (R,130)

January 18-30, 1962	13 days
February 5-12, 1962	8 days
June 15 - July 4, 1962	21 days
December 8, 1962-February 2, 1963	87 days
April 4 - May 20, 1963	<u>47 days</u>
Total	176 days

Sanderson's counsel, Mr. Farr, attempted to introduce evidence related to difference in earning power since the accident to support a finding of disability and the Referee would not permit such evidence. In fact the Referee represented that in regard to the question of disability it was deferred until later; that the disability rating would have to be decided by a Medical Advisory Board. (R, 131)

The question of disability has never been referred to a Medical Advisory Board; however, The Industrial Commission arbitrarily made a finding that Sanderson should not be rated for permanent partial disability and denied recovery for any claim based on such. (Page 2, Order dated July 1, 1964)

The Referee recognized the fact that Sanderson was still under doctor supervision on February 10, 1964, and so admitted it when he said that she would have to be examined by a Medical Advisory Board when released by the doctor. (R, 132)

At the time of the Application for Rehearing, Sanderson was still under doctor's care and had received subsequent treatment for relief of pain and suffering from the injury involved in the industrial accident. (Page 1, Application for Rehearing and Exhibit A.)

Sanderson offered to introduce additional evidence of the progress of recovery from the injury by way of the Dr. A. F. Martin Report dated June 18, 1964, and The Industrial Commission refused to accept or consider same. (See Exhibit A attached to Application for Rehearing and Commission's Order dated August 27, 1964.)

Sanderson in her Application for Rehearing objected to the Order of the Industrial Commission of July 1, 1964, on the basis, among other things, that the Medical Panel had not made a recommendation in regard to the question of permanent partial disability. (Page 2, Paragraph 1 (f) k, Application for Rehearing.)

The Medical Panel never determined to what extent Sanderson had been injured as a result of the accident. (See Medical Panel Reports - July 17, 1963, and October 18, 1963.)

The Industrial Commission denied Sanderson the right to recover her medical and hospital expenses from June 14, 1962, to date, which she incurred in obtaining treatment for her injuries sustained from the industrial accident.

Neither the Medical Panel nor a Medical Advisory Board has ever made a finding regarding partial disability; however, Dr. Hebertson, a member of the Medical Panel, concluded that the applicant did sustain a five (5%) per cent loss of body function and consented that the Panel Report could be so amended. Dr. Schricker testified that the applicant had a Ten (10%) to fifteen (15%) per cent permanent partial disability. (See Commission Order dated July 1, 1964, and R 84, 85, 88, 91)

The Referee (one of the Commissioners) at the hearing on February 10, 1964, represented that the question of permanent partial disability would later have to be referred to a Medical Advisory Board. (R, 63)

The following is a chronological summary of the Applicant's case as extracted from the record, and beginning with the reports of the Employer and Dr. Greene, to wit:

January 18, 1962

Accident and injury with Dr. Mark Greene and Dr. J. Waldo as attending Physicians. (R,2)

Injury to her back. (R,3)

February 17, 1962

"The patient continues to have considerable trouble with her back..."

"On examination today there is localized tenderness at the lower lumbar area with a change in sensation on the lateral aspect of the lower leg. The patient is also complaining of cramps into the calf region." (R,5)

March 24, 1962

"...She continues to have pain in her back with some radiation into the lower legs. She has continued to work with a considerable amount of difficulty. She states the only thing that has really been keeping her going has been her periodic physical therapy..."

"On examination there is evidence of low back muscle spasm..." (R, 6)

May 5, 1962

"The above patient is complaining of low back pain and also of having some charleyhorses at night. She states she has continued to work and this causes her some difficulty."

"On examination today there is evidence of some lumbar muscle spasm..." (R,7)

July 19, 1962

"...The patient was seen...at the hospital and she was still complaining of back pain...She was again examined in the office on 7/19/62...which revealed localized tenderness in the region between T-6 and T-10..." (R,8)

August 18, 1962

"...the patient still complains of considerable pain in the lower thoracic region...Examination of the back again reveals localized tenderness in the region of T-10... (The Dr. at this time ordered a corset.) (R,9)

October 20, 1962

"The patient states that approximately four days ago when she was getting out of the car, she suddenly fell due to the instability of her left hip. She also has been complaining of constant pain in the low back with numbness of the entire left side.

"...There is evidence of hypesthesia in the entire left side of her body. There is localized tenderness in the level of the lower lumbar back..."

At the recommendation of Dr. John Waldo, Sanderson went to see Dr. J. Louis Schricker on October 24, 1962.

Sanderson last saw Dr. Greene on December 20, 1962, who on March 7, 1963, advised the State Insurance Fund of the transfer of the case to Dr. Schricker.

October 24, 1962

Sanderson was examined by Dr. J. Louis Schricker who sent a report dated February 25, 1963, to the State Insurance Fund. (R,22)

Excerpts from Dr. Schricker's report pertinent to this appeal are as follows: (R,22)

"In June, 1962, she was hospitalized again for another effort at control of her diabetes and because of severe nervous reaction to the effects of the injury."

"On occasion since that time the patient has had loss of ability to control the left side of her body, some difficulty with walking, with the leg going from under her without warning. She also has had pain on the left side of her body. This involves the entire left half of the body and is more prominent with walking at which time pain in the leg becomes quite severe..."

"These problems have been treated with surgical girdle and with appropriate medications for pain and control of her diabetes."

"...Cranial nerves, decrease in sensation over left side of face to pin prick. There is marked decrease in sensation over the entire left half of the body..."

"My initial impression was a herniated nucleus pulposus, L 4-5 on the left. 2. Observation for cervical disc. 3. Diabetes controlled on insulin."

November 5, 1962

"She was seen again...at which time her physical condition had become so severe that she had been fired from her employment."

"She was advised to have hospitalization... and was...admitted to L. D. S. Hospital..."

November 9, 1962

"Admitted to L. D. S. Hospital..."

November 10, 1962

"At this time three diagnoses were made:
1. Post-concussion syndrome.
2. Lumbosacral strain, left.
3. Observation for cervical disc."

November 18, 1962

"She was discharged from the hospital...somewhat improved."

November 30, 1962

"...she complained of difficult concentrating, stated that she had a great deal of pain in her back and both legs, most severely in the left leg, headache had remained essentially unabated. Diabetes at this time was completely out of con-

trol...I released her to return to work as of December 6, 1962."

December 6, 1962

(Date Dr. Schricker released Sanderson to return to work.) (R,24)

January 14, 1963

"She was next seen at the office...at which time the numbness of the entire left side of the body continued.

February 25, 1963

"At the present time, she has a temporary partial disability of twenty-five (25%) per cent body function as a whole. This is based primarily upon the headaches, complaints referable to the cervical spine and manifested primarily by numbness and tingling of the left upper extremity and also from complaints of low back pain with radiation of pain into the left lower extremity, for the most part, but with occasional episodes of radiation into the right."

(From Dr. Schricker Report dated July 25, 1963)
(R,39)

March 22, 1963

"At the time of her visit in March, 1963, she stated she was working part time. Her physical examination was essentially as I had found it on her previous visits and is summarized in the letters already in your hands..."

"...I felt she needed a lumbosacral support in order to more adequately be able to get around..."

June 21, 1963

"She had been advised to obtain a lumbosacral support on the March, 1963, visit and was wearing this support on this visit. She was going

to physical therapy on an out-patient basis and was taking robaical, librium and mellaril."

"Physical examination at this visit revealed tenderness over the spinous processes of C6 and C7 and tenderness over the low lumbar area primarily L4-L5 and S1..."

"...She also noted that there was moderate weakness in grip of the left hand. This, too, I was able to verify objectively, but I am uncertain as to whether it is a functional or organic component..."

(See Medical Report of Dr. A. F. Martin, R, 163)

Quoting from the report of the examination by Dr. A. F. Martin, to-wit:

April 21, 1964

"approximately April 12, she noted recurrence of marked snapping in her low back with extreme pain radiating into both buttocks and the backs of her legs with profound muscle spasm and cramping in the thighs. Cough and sneeze has produced marked pain in the shoulder on the left side, low back, neck, and left arm. She continued to complain of complete anesthesia of the left side of her body... She complained of numerous headaches, extreme weakness, apprehension, and nervousness...She estimated that she has lost six months from work since her accident..."

ver
case

"...but complained of hypesthesia, almost total anesthesia to pin prick along the entire left side of her body...She was tender throughout the spine area to touch, especially in the cervical, left shoulder, interscapular, and low-back areas... but bilateral severe sciatic notch tenderness and actual hyperesthesia to light touch throughout her low-back area."

Dr. Martin concluded that Sanderson had:

1. Chronic cervical syndrome
2. Chronic lumbar spine pain

May 6, 1964 (R, 163)

Sanderson admitted to St. Mark's Hospital and "was placed on intermittent heavy cervical traction as well as Williams' exercises to her low back..."

The results of such treatment as stated by Dr. Martin-- "...fortunately experienced very markable improvement in her situation. She has had no further headaches, her emotional status is greatly improved, not being so apprehensive or so concerned, and has returned to gainful employment at this time."

At the time of the Industrial accident, Sanderson was a Diabetic. When the accident happened, her diabetes went out of control; and she had to receive treatment for such in addition to and along with the injuries suffered from the accident. Dr. John F. Waldo was the attending Physician who gave her treatment in regard to the aggravated condition. (R,2)

In regard to the question of to what extent was the diabetes aggravated by the accident, Dr. John F. Waldo at the hearing on February 10, 1964, testified as follows: (R, 118, 119, 120, and 121)

Q. Now on February 5, 1963, you made an observation to the effect that she went into the hospital again on June 15th to July 4th of '62?

A. Yes.

Q. And what was the reason for her hospitalization at that time?

A. Her diabetes was very much out of control at that time.

Q: In your opinion, Doctor, is there any relationship between the diabetes and the injury which she suffered on January 18th of 1962? At that time, On January 18th, you were called in for diabetes. Was there any relationship with the diabetes going out of control and the injury at that time?

A. I can only give an opinion on that.

Q. Well, didn't you make the comment as follows:

"I do feel that the fact of her diabetes getting so thoroughly out of hand under these circumstances does relate, in a manner of speaking, to the injury to her back."

A. I said this appeared to be related to the fact that she had been having such severe pain from her back that we had great trouble controlling her food intake and insulin, and, therefore, felt the hospitalization required.

Q. This was on June 15th to July 4th?

A. Yes. That is correct.

Q. Fine, then in regard to the diabetes out of control at the time of the accident, in your opinion was this related to the accident?

A. To the extent that we could observe that her diabetes became more difficult to control when she was having the severe pain.

Q. And subsequently then, would the observation be the same? That as she would have severe pain, would this also influence the fact of the diabetes going out of control?

A. With this individual patient, this has followed in general.

Q. Then in your opinion would it be that the accident which occurred on January 18th of '62 did aggravate the diabetic condition, through this pain and suffering which she did experience?

A. I can say that her diabetes were difficult to control at that time. I couldn't be more deductive than that.

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