1964

Marian L. Sanderson v. Industrial Commission of Utah et al : Defendants' Brief

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

POINT 1

THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION'S DECISION DENYING APPLICANT'S CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION BENEFITS AFTER JUNE 13, 1962, AND DENYING HER CLAIM FOR COMPENSATION FOR PERMANENT PARTIAL DISABILITY, WAS PROPER AND WAS SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE IN THE RECORD.

In paragraph 3 of his Petition for Writ of Review, Plaintiff's attorney charged that the Industrial Commission's order of July 1, 1964 (1) failed to resolve the issues; (2) did not rate the Plaintiff for permanent partial disability; (3) limited the liability of the employer to the period of time ending June 13, 1962; and (4) denied claimant any further compensation.

The Commission did "resolve the issues." Some of them were resolved in favor of applicant's claim; and some of them were resolved against her claim. The Plaintiff by her appeal objects to those parts of the Commission's order which resolved certain issues against her claim.

The Commission's decision of July 1, 1964, (R. 140), recited the Medical Panel's actions and findings and conclusions in the case, and then said, (R. 141) :

The Commission accepts the Panel report.

The Commission concludes that applicant should receive compensation for time lost from

work because of the injury to and including June 13, 1962, and that all related medical and hospital bills to and including June 13, 1962 should be paid by carrier. She should not be rated for permanent partial disability because there is no objective evidence of permanent disability as a result of the accident.

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that defendants pay applicant temporary total compensation at the rate of \$41.75 per week from January 21, 1962 to February 12, 1962, if not already paid, and all medical and hospital bills to and including the 13th day of June, 1962.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any claim at this time for permanent partial disability because of the injury to the back is and same is hereby denied.

There is ample evidence in the record to support the foregoing decision and order of the Commission. (R. 140-141) Both Dr. Wayne M. Hebertson and Dr. Boyd G. Holbrook, who testified at the Commission's hearing, (R. 72-107), were members of the Medical Panel which had made its report to the Commission dated October 18, 1963, and which was received by the Commission on November 5, 1963. (R. 57-59)

Reference was made in Plaintiff's brief (PB-8) to the testimony of Dr. Hebertson, a member of the Panel, that Applicant had a 5% loss of bodily function as far as her arm was concerned. It is submitted that a fair reading of the testimony of Dr. Hebert-

son (R-80-81) will show that the doctor was referring only to the subjective complaints of the Plaintiff, and that objectively he did not find any permanent partial disability.

Dr. Hebertson testified (R. 80) that there was no objective evidence of loss of function of Mrs. Sanderson's central or peripheral nervous system, which might have been the result of her injuries of January 18, 1962. That also was substantially one of the findings and conclusions contained in the Panel report. (R. 59)

Dr. Hebertson testified in answering Mr. Farr's questions, (R. 80-81):

Q. Was there any subjective evidence?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the subjective evidence?

A. The pain which was present over the patient's head and neck, her decreasing grip in the left hand, and the loss of feeling over the left side of the face and left upper extremity.

Q. Any other evidence, sir?

A. I don't think so.

Q. As far as objective and subjective evidence, is one any more valid than the other in determining the disability?

A. I think so. Objective evidence is always more valid than subjective evidence in determining disability.

At R. 84, Mr. Farr further questioned Dr. Hebertson:

Q. Has there been any significant loss of function of arm or hand of Mrs. Sanderson?

A. Yes. Subjectively, yes.

Q. To what extent, sir?

A. Again that is purely subjective, or purely on the part of the patient, and I could not determine it. I would have to accept her word purely in that regard, because objectively I can find no loss of function in the extremity.

Dr. Boyd G. Holbrook, an M.D. specializing in orthopedic surgery, who was the chairman of the Medical Panel in this case, testified regarding the procedure of the Panel in performing its functions under the provisions of Section 35-1-77 of the Workmen's Compensation Law. (R. 93) The Referee (Commissioner Wiesley), asked him:

Q. Now tell us your procedure in getting together.

A. When I receive one of these Panels, I review the entire record and make up a summary of all the pertinent factors from the record. If it appears that there are any reports that are not present in the record, any doctors that have seen the patient from whom we do not have reports, or any other information that we can detect might have a bearing on it, we attempt to obtain all of this information. In addition we obtain all of the X-rays that can be obtained that had been taken on

the case. Then this information is all summarized. The X-rays, the Industrial Commission file and the summary are sent to each Panel member prior to the meetings, so that he can review them and become acquainted with the case. The applicant is then called in. We, before examining the applicant, go over all of the previous material. The applicant is then interviewed. That is a history is taken regarding their entire story, involving their alleged accident and the symptoms, and the treatment, and the applicant is then examined. Following that the Panel then goes over the findings, and reaches the conclusions. The report is then typed up, sent — or taken, actually taken — to each Panel member individually, for his signature.

In answering Mr. Farr's questions on cross-examination, (R. 96-97), Dr. Holbrook testified regarding the occasions when the members of the Medical Panel made examinations of Mrs. Sanderson's head and neck and back, etc.:

Q. Now did you examine Marian Sanderson, doctor?

A. Yes. Well, I should say that I did not personally examine Marian Sanderson. * * * I was present at both of the examinations. These are done each time with all as previously described. All of the members of the Panel examined the patient together. * * * Obviously every member of the Panel does not perform every examination test. They are done as a group examination, and I was a part of the group that examined Mrs. Sanderson on two

occasions. * * * As Chairman, the various portions of this examination were delegated to the specialists involved, and I acted as recorder, writing down the findings and the history that we obtained.

Plaintiff has taken the position that the Commission, in following the findings of the Medical Panel, acted arbitrarily and in excess of its powers. It is claimed throughout Plaintiff's Brief that the report of the Medical Panel should be considered as only an "exhibit" and not as evidence.

Section 35-1-77, U.C.A., 1953 in providing for the Medical Panel and in setting forth the procedure to be followed if objections to the findings of the Panel are made is as follows:

If objections to such report are filed it shall be the duty of the Commission to set the case for hearing within thirty days to determine the facts and issues involved, and at such hearing any party so desiring may request the Commission to have the Medical Panel or any of its members present at the hearing for examination and cross-examination. Upon such hearing the written report of the panel may be received as an exhibit but shall not be considered as evidence in the case except insofar as it is sustained by the testimony admitted.

In this case Dr. Boyd G. Holbrook, who had been appointed Chairman of the Medical Panel to investigate the medical aspects involved, was present at the hearing held on February 10, 1964 and was

called upon to testify. Dr. Holbrook identified the signatures on the panel report (R. 92, 103, 104). He then explained how the Panel proceeded to determine the medical aspects of the case (R. 93). His testimony has been set out in full earlier in this brief. Upon cross-examination by counsel he explained in detail the examination which was made of the medical reports and of the applicant, the Plaintiff herein, (R. 94-103). Later, in response to questioning by counsel for the State Insurance Fund, he testified as follows relative to the Panel report:

Q. And you concurred and agreed with the other doctors that the statements of the facts specified in this report and the conclusions which you arrived at — particularly those set out in the latter part of the report — are your opinions and findings?

A. I concur with these, yes.

Q. And you still have that same opinion?

A. I do.

The above quoted portion of Section 35-1-77, U.C.A., 1953, sets forth that the Medical Panel report shall be received “as an exhibit, but shall not be considered as evidence in the case except insofar as it is sustained by the testimony admitted.” The testimony of Dr. Holbrook, as Chairman of the Panel, upon the careful examination of him by Plaintiff’s counsel and by counsel for the State Insurance Fund, did sustain the contents of the Medical Panel report, particularly the findings thereof, and that the report having been sustained by the testimony of the

doctors, the Medical Panel report became and was properly considered as evidence by the Commission. Dr. Hebertson also testified to the same effect (R. 72, 87).

Plaintiff's brief cites the case of *Hackford vs. Industrial Commission of Utah*, 358 P. 2d. 899, 11 U. 2d. 312, in support of the argument that neither the Commission nor the employer introduced the testimony required by Section 35-1-77, U.C.A., 1953 as amended. In the *Hackford* case, although the members of the Medical Panel were present at the hearing none of them were examined, either by the Commission or by counsel for either party. In that case the Panel report was not sustained by competent evidence. The facts in this case are entirely different. The Chairman of the Medical Panel was present, he was examined by the referee, very carefully cross-examined by Plaintiff's attorney, and further examined by counsel for the State Insurance Fund. His testimony fully sustained the findings and conclusions of the Medical Panel. Dr. Hebertson who was also a member of the Medical Panel was present and testified. The Commission strived earnestly to provide Plaintiff with a complete study of the medical aspects of her claim. Following the report of the original Medical Panel, and at the request of Plaintiff's attorney, two additional physicians were appointed to the Panel, Dr. Wayne M. Hebertson, a neurologist and Dr. Allen E. Lindsay, an internist. This enlarged Panel then made its report to the Commission and found as follows:

(1) This applicant's hospitalization on 18 January 1962 was made necessary by this accident. This accident resulted in temporary loss of control of her diabetes and care of her diabetes during this period of hospitalization was made necessary by this accident. The relationship of her diabetes to this accident ceased at the time of her discharge from the hospital and the subsequent course and care of her diabetes since that time is not related to this accident.

The Panel's findings in that paragraph were entirely in favor of the Plaintiff. In the next four paragraphs of its report the Panel found that:

(2) This applicant follows the natural history of most diabetics and appears to follow the normal course of diabetes for her. There is no evidence of aggravation of her diabetic process as a result of this accident.

(3) Total temporary disability as a result of this accident ceased when she returned to work initially following this accident.

(4) There is no objective evidence of permanent disability as a result of this accident.

(5) No further treatment is indicated as a result of this accident.

It is well established that conflicts in the evidence must be resolved by the Commission as stated in *Norris vs. Industrial Commission*, 90 U. 256, 261, 61 P. 2d. 413:

Again, therefore, we have the old case of a conflict of evidence which it is for the Commission to resolve.

It was for the Commission to resolve the conflict in the evidence in this case. That it chose to accept the conclusions of the Medical Panel was not capricious or arbitrary. The members of the Panel were specialists in their fields, and the Commission chose to believe the testimony of the Panel doctors and report of the Panel.

POINT 2

THE INDUSTRIAL COMMISSION WAS NOT LEGALLY REQUIRED TO FIND OR CONCLUDE THAT MARIAN SANDERSON'S TREATMENT FOR HER DIABETIC CONDITION AFTER JUNE 13, 1962, WAS NECESSITATED BY HER ACCIDENT OF JANUARY 18, 1962.

Basically the same situation exists in the case at bar, as has existed in a number of other cases which have been decided by this Court. One of the most recent was the case of *Burton vs. Ind. Comm.*, 13 Utah 2d 353, 374 P. 2d 439, which had many elements of similarity to the procedural situation existing in our present (Sanderson) case. Mr. Burton worked as an employee delivering beer. On the morning of October 30, 1959, after he had made his second delivery in downtown Salt Lake City and returned to his truck, he felt a severe pain in his chest. He went into the nearby Judge Building, where a doctor gave him some emergency treatment, and then called his family doctor, T. A. Clawson. Mr. Burton was taken to a hospital, where he died that after-

noon, from coronary occlusion. After hearings by the Industrial Commission, and proceedings by a medical panel, the Commission denied the claim of Mrs. Burton, on the basis that the death did not result from an industrial accident. The Supreme Court of Utah upheld the Commission's denial. In the Court's opinion, among other things it said:

In order to reverse the finding and order made the plaintiff must show that there is such credible uncontradicted evidence in her favor that the Commission's refusal to so find was capricious and arbitrary. * * * * She relies upon the circumstances of the death described above, coupled with the testimony of the family physician, Dr. Clawson. In response to the question as to whether the deceased's exertion in lifting and delivering the cases of beer was a contributing cause to the occurrence to Mr. Burton's heart attack and his death, the doctor answered that, "it could be a factor."

As opposed to the evidence upon which plaintiff relied the Commission had before it the opinions of three members of the medical panel, together with the testimony of one of them, Dr. L. E. Viko, a well-known heart specialist. The substance of their opinions was that Mr. Burton's coronary thrombosis with myocardial infarction was not caused by the exertion of his work that morning. In its decision the Commission recited, "We chose to believe the testimony of Dr. L. E. Viko and the panel report."

Assuming without deciding that the plaintiff's evidence would be sufficient to sus-

tain a finding in her favor, it is indisputable that the testimony just referred to is sufficient to sustain a finding to the contrary. There being no basis upon which this court could say that the Commission acted capriciously, arbitrarily or unreasonably in denying the application, its order is affirmed.

Another case which involved the Industrial Commission's acceptance of one side of a conflict in the medical opinion evidence in the case, was *Woodburn vs. Ind. Comm.*, 111 Utah 393, 181 P. 2d 209. Paul Woodburn was employed as superintendent on the ski-lift construction job at Snow Basin. On July 21, 1945 he rode a tractor to the upper terminal point, then he walked down the mountain to the lower terminal. When he arrived there, apparently he suffered a slight heart attack. For the next ten days he supervised the job from the lower level. On July 31st he did some climbing on the hill. Shortly afterwards he had severe pain under the breastbone. After a hearing and rehearing, the Commission denied Mr. Woodburn's claim. The Commission concluded that his coronary occlusion "was not caused by an accident arising out of or in the course of" his employment. In sustaining the Commission's decision, the Supreme Court of Utah (p. 396), referred to the expert medical testimony before the Commission. The medical testimony from four doctors was divided with respect to their opinions of the possible causation between the exertion and the heart attack. At page 399 of the Court's opinion, it quoted from a previous Utah case, *Lorange vs. Ind. Comm.*, 107 Utah 261, 152 P. 2d 272:

Unless therefore it can be said, upon the whole record, that the commission clearly acted arbitrarily or capriciously in making its findings and decision, this court is powerless to interfere. * * * * It was not intended, * * * * that this court, in matters of evidence, should to any extent substitute its judgment for the judgment of the Commission.

and at page 400 of the Court's opinion:

There is substantial competent evidence (supplied by Drs. Walker and Olson) that in this case plaintiff's injury was not caused or contributed to by the physical effort he put forth on his job. The Commission, therefore, did not act arbitrarily or capriciously in determining such to be the case.

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